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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Life insurance policy disclosures. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on HB 1468. 
 
Rep Mock~District 18:  Introduces HB 1468.  Attachment 1.  A public employee didn’t have 
a group life insurance because the time period needed to be 14 days for a new born child.  A 
couple had a new born child die & died two days later.  The group life policy said that the 
child had to be 14 days old.  I would like you to also add the amendment, it’s good. 
 
5:30 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  It seems that you are giving up the affirmative of acknowledgment.  
This is basically states that they have a provision in their life insurance policy but how many 
people read that? 
 
Rep Mock:  I agree & that’s why we have the affirmative acknowledgment.  A disclosure is 
the bare minimum that I would like to see placed in code. 
 
Levi Andrist~American Council of Life Insurance:  Vice Chairman Lefor question, that is 
one difference.  As the bill was drafted before you without the amendment, an affirmative 
acknowledgment by the insured would mean a new born baby would have to give consent.  
The way it’s drafted it doesn’t make sense.  This is an anomaly scenario that doesn’t happen 
very often.  This is just for a group not an individual life policy.  We felt this amendment gave 
the most flexibility. 
 
Rep Kasper: I can give you a prediction if this passes with the amendment.  The group 
policy, which is 70 or 80 pages & given to the employer, that’s where the disclosure will be 
put.  The way this amendment the way it is without any clarification, I don’t believe it 
accomplishes the object of Rep Mock to make sure that the insurers know what the 
coverages will be. 
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Levi Andrist:  I can see what you are talk about which document the disclosure will be on.  
I would be glad to look into that. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  When is the notification sent, right before the baby is born.  How does 
the insurance company know? 
 
Levi Andrist:  That’s why we think the initial bill draft doesn’t work because there is an issue 
called guarantee issue, they are automatically covered without opting in.  There is no 
communication.  Specifically, there is no time of application or enrollment as suggested in 
the bill.  Especially in the guarantee issue scenario. I agree with you. 
 
Rep Kasper:  The onus of the disclosure should be on the employer not the insurance 
company.  The notification should go to the employer to give to the employee.  Insurance 
companies should be off the hook. 
 
Pat Ward~Represent State Farm Insurance & All State Insurance:  They both have some 
concerns.  It doesn’t address section 2 which need some tweaking.  It talks about a renewal 
which is not a concept that applies here.  Secondly, after July 31, going forward notification 
to the existing policy holders, there are people moving in & out all the time.  It would need to 
be limited to notification when the policy that is originally issued in ND.  If they move to 
another state & keep their policy, we wouldn’t necessarily know.  We would support the bill 
with the amendment more than without. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify in support of HB 1468, opposition, neutral?  
Closes the hearing.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  We will hold the bill.  Rep P Anderson, would you have conversations & 
work with Rep Kasper, Levi & Pat. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Life insurance policy disclosures. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on HB 1468. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Attachment 1.  Goes over the amendment.  All parties agreed. 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Move the amendment. 
 
Rep Bosch:  Second. 
 
Voice vote ~ motion carried. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We have HB 1468 before us, what are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Moves a Do Pass as Amended. 
 
Rep O'Brien:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion? 
 
Roll call was taken on HB 1468 for a Do Pass as Amended with 14 yes, 0 no, 0 absent 
& Rep P Anderson is the carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
relating to life insurance policy disclosures; and to provide for application. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1  

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on HB 1468. All members were present.  
 
Representative Corey Mock, District 18: see attachment #1 for testimony in support of the 
bill.  
 
Senator Roers: Now as amended, these parents would have coverage the moment the child 
is born? 
 
Representative Mock: The state life insurance policy that currently exists for state 
employees, there is no longer a waiting period that exists. And this would have no effect on 
the state’s life insurance policy, because this was taken care of by PERS once this gap was 
discovered. This bill just says that if there is a gap, it needs to be disclosed. There doesn’t 
need to be a reissuance of a certificate, but there would need to be an affirmative that this 
gap exists.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Wouldn’t they just simply drop that policy and adopt a new policy? 
 
Representative Mock: This couple didn’t know that the gap existed.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: So then these people who do have an existing life insurance policy, they 
were made aware of, would they also be advised that this gap policy is available?  
 
Representative Mock: The law would not require any further advisement. You would be 
informed if you are covered under group insurance coverage through your employer for 
instance, in an internal memo. For example, I’m expecting a child in the next few weeks, if 
we had a gap, our insurer would have to notify us of that and we would likely elect some short 
term life insurance policy to cover that gap. There would be no other requirement.  
 
Senator Burckhard: What would be the case if it was a stillborn child? 
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Representative Mock: I don’t want to speak on that. Waiting periods are not a regular 
appearance. It’s not a regular feature. I don’t know how a stillborn case would be effected if 
there was no waiting period.   
 
Senator Piepkorn: An existing policy holder, they are informed that their policy does not take 
effect for fourteen days, shouldn’t they be informed that there is a gap policy available to 
them rather than just left to their own ignorance?  
 
Representative Mock: If this were through an employer, they would inform their employees 
through probably an HR department. I would suspect that they would also be informed of the 
gap coverage at that time. If you have an individual insurance policy, there is nothing that 
would require that disclosure but I would assume the insurance agent would likely provide 
you with additional options to ensure that there are no waiting periods or gaps in your policy.  
 
Chairman Klein: This is for a group life insurance policy? 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I think there should be at least notification at the time that the policy 
holder is notified? 
 
Chairman Klein: Well how would you notify 55,000 PERS employees?  
 
Representative Mock: There was no good way of notifying. I would defer to industry. This 
would make sure that you are aware that there is a gap in coverage.  
 
Levi Andrist, GA group, Bruce Ferguson, American Council of Life insurers: testified in 
support of the bill. We support the bill with amendment. It provides an important consumer 
service by allowing individuals who are covered under group policies, if they have dependent 
coverage to be made aware of the existence of a waiting period. Not all policies are the same. 
This bill provides a very important disclosure notification, so if you become aware that there 
is a waiting period you can seek coverage for that period of the waiting period. We support 
the bill with the amendments it reflects how individuals are notified through disclosure, either 
by the employer or the carrier who does the disclosure on behalf of the employer.  
 
Chairman Klein: Right now we have nothing? So we’re hoping to be able to apply it?  
 
Bruce: Right. This would help so people would be able to understand that.  
 
Crystal Bartuska, insurance department: offered neutral testimony. There is no other type 
of coverage that you can buy for that 14-day window. I know gap coverage was mentioned. 
So if I have a group policy and I am going to have a child, I can cover my dependents. All of 
the polices that we approve, we found that this was disclosed in the policy. It’s on the term 
rider. Your first child isn’t going to be covered because no company is going to offer you 
coverage on a child that isn’t born yet. In the constituent situation, it was their first child, that’s 
how the life insurance world works. Life insurance you’re underwriting a limited individual. 
Your child passes away in that first 14 days. Most insurance companies don’t cover them.  
 
Senator Roers: Is 14 days the norm? Because as I recall it was 24 hours? 
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Crystal: We’re seeing that most of them are 14 days. I don’t know why but we don’t 
disapprove it.  
 
Chairman Klein: On day one there is no policy I can buy my baby? 
 
Crystal: If you’re thinking that way after you’ve just had a child, you can buy a policy for that 
child but it would have to be underwritten. Its insuring that life not on my policy or an additional 
child term rider that covers all of your children.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Typically, the first 14 days is typically when you would have issues 
after birth. Your doctor says there is an issue with your baby, chances are it may not live past 
a couple days. There has to be something in there that says. Some of that is guaranteed 
coverage. This would prevent people from buying coverage if they thing there might be a 
death after the baby is born.  
 
Chairman Klein: Which would be literally impossible.  
 
Crystal: I don’t know any company that is going to underwrite this person that doesn’t exist 
yet.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: It’s just beyond my understanding because the last three people all gave 
different answer.  
 
Crystal: You can get a regular insurance policy for a child that is one or two days old, gap 
coverage doesn’t exist in the life insurance realm.  
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on HB 1468.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
relating to life insurance policy disclosures; and to provide for application. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 None.  

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on HB 1468.  
 
Senator Roers: Moved to Adopt Amendment.  
 
Senator Kreun: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Chairman Klein: I guess I didn’t realize a life insurance policy didn’t begin until 14 days in.  
 
Senator Kreun: Is this just for PERS? 
 
Chairman Klein: In this case it was PERS, but now it will be for everyone.  
 
Senator Roers: I’m just shocked that two weeks is a long time for a policy to come into play. 
I thought mine started within 24 hours.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: When a baby is born you have no idea what the health conditions 
are, so those first two weeks are kind of like a trial period.  
 
Levi Andrist, American Council of Life Insurers: All the bill says is that if you do have a 
waiting period it must be disclosed in writing to the insured.  
 
Senator Burckhard: Is this considered a mandate? 
 
Chairman Klein: No 
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Vice Chairman Vedaa: Don’t most policies have in their policy that there is a fourteen-day 
waiting period? But this just puts it in a different spot? 
 
Levi: There is both and this bill only talks about group life insurance policies. It does not 
address individual life insurance policies.   
 
Senator Roers: Vice Chairman Vedaa’s question, so if we had a whole life that we bought 
from somewhere, we could have a much shorter window if that’s what we wanted right? The 
two weeks’ period just seems extremely long.  
 
Levi: I’m confident that you would be able to find one with a waiting period and one without.  
 
Senator Kreun: That’s what was explained to us. Can’t we just remind people to actually 
read their contracts? This will just remind people to read the disclosures.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I talked with Levi earlier, if a baby was born and you got the notification 
that life insurance doesn’t kick in until after two weeks. It’s my contention that at the same 
time, you should be told of some sort of insurance policy or something that would help pay 
for the burial or something wouldn’t there?  
 
Levi: You’d have to ask someone in the life insurance realm.  
 
Chairman Klein: Nobody is trying to circumvent what they owe. It’s just that these people 
didn’t know what was in their policy.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Senator Piepkorn I don’t think there is gonna be a note after the baby 
is born, but one reason people don’t think about this is because it’s kind of morbid. There are 
riders you can have on your own life insurance if you think of it.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: My problem is with the process.  
 
Chairman Klein: There was a problem and this is us trying to address it. It’s a disclosure 
issue. And this says this is our policy this is what’s in it. This is hoping to help those people 
that didn’t know.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I just wish it would go a little bit further, but if that’s not plausible than it’s 
just not.  
 
Chairman Klein: We go back to some responsibility. It’s not that hard.  
 
Senator Kreun: I think what we’re doing is telling them this is the disclosure you don’t have 
it it’s not there, so go out and start looking for it.  
 
Chairman Klein: This does draw more light on the whole issue.  
 
Senator Kreun: Do Pass as Amended.  
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Senator Roers: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Senator Kreun will carry the bill.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Life insurance policy disclosures. 
  

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Bosch:  Opens the conference committee hearing on HB 1468.  I see what we 
are doing here, would you explain how you are interpreting? 
 
Sen Kreun:  What we did is we took a look at the explanation & we clarified the last two line.  
Rather than the certificate holder of the existence of that waiting period, to notify the policy 
holder.  We thought it was a better explanation & didn’t want to change the meaning of the 
bill. It was some insurance language. 
 
Chairman Bosch:  If we had a large group plan, the insurance company would not notify the 
individual members within that insurance plan, but the HR would notify them. 
 
Sen Kreun:  That’s right.  There was no reason to change all the literature.  
 
Chairman Bosch:  Questions? 
 
Rep P Anderson:  Moves the House accede to Senate Amendments. 
 
Sen Kreun: Second. 
 
Chairman Bosch:  Further discussion? 
 
Roll call was taken on HB 1468 for the House to accede to Senate Amendments with 6 
yes, 0 no, 0 absent & Chairman Bosch & Sen Kreun are the carriers. 
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